Town Hall High Street Lewes East Sussex BN7 2QS

 ☎ 01273 471469 Fax: 01273 480919
☑ info@lewes-tc.gov.uk www.lewes-tc.gov.uk



### To: Cllrs Catlin (Wischhusen); Dean; Li; Milner; Murray (S); O'Keeffe

A Meeting of the Working party formed to address traffic-related issues in Lewes will be held on **Tuesday 18<sup>th</sup> March 2014** in the **Yarrow Room**, **Town Hall**, Lewes at **11:00am** which you are requested to attend.

### AGENDA

Shide

S Brigden,Town Clerk 10<sup>th</sup> March 2014

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE:

To receive apologies from members of the working-party who are unable to attend.

2. MEMBER'S DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST:

To note declarations of any personal or prejudicial interests in matters on this agenda.

3. MINUTES

To agree minutes of the meeting held on 28th November 2013

4. QUESTION TIME

To receive any questions regarding items on the agenda for this meeting.

5. BUSINESS OF THE MEETING

To continue the work of previous meetings, in assessing practical issues involved in addressing the remit of the working-party.

In particular: recent concerns expressed by parents and others regarding safe drop-off/pick-up of children at South Malling School; and other concerns regarding standards of highway/footway maintenance within the town, and especially within the Conservation Area.

Please see notes overleaf

For further information about items on this agenda please contact the Town Clerk at the above address.



**PUBLIC ATTENDANCE:** Members of the public have the right, and are welcome, to attend meetings of the Council – questions regarding items on this agenda may be heard at the start of each meeting with the Chairman's consent, and subject to time available. Questions or requests to address the Council should, whenever possible, be submitted in writing to the Town Clerk at least 24 hours in advance. <u>PLEASE NOTE</u>: As space is limited we would appreciate advanced warning if you plan to attend in a group; perhaps with neighbours, or to bring a party of student observers. We may be able to arrange for the meeting to be held in an alternative room. General questions can be raised at our offices between 9am-5pm Mons- Thurs; 9am-4pm on Fridays – our staff will be pleased to assist.

**Distribution:** Cllrs Catlin (Wischhusen); Dean; Li; Milner; Murray (S); O'Keeffe and ESCC Cllr C Maynard, ESCC Cllr R St Pierre, Mr Rupert Clubb ESCC Director of Transport & Environment *Copies for information:* All councillors; T/hall; LTC website; Lewes Library, Sx. Express, E.Argus, Mayor's Chaplain, Sx. Police, N Baker MP, LDC, ESCC, Fr'ds of Lewes

(attached page 3)

#### Church Lane, Malling, - Information received from parents and school governors:

The parking, drop off and pickup around South Malling School, Church Lane, is described as a nightmare, and sadly a pupil was injured by a car before Christmas. Parents are currently campaigning and petitioning ESCC to improve the safety of the roads around the School, and have held a meeting on-site with an officer from ESCC Highways to discuss any possible solutions.

The area around the school, including Barn Lane, The Deanery, The Martlets and along Church Lane accommodates the 'School Run' for the parents of 253 pupils that attend South Malling School. It is observed that Church Lane rapidly becomes congested and some parking practices are "questionable".

Parents of pupils at the school are currently petitioning ESCC (see <u>http://www.ipetitions.com/petition/parking-at-south-malling-school</u>), and some comments have been raised on the forum section. It would be an underestimation to say that very many parents are very concerned about the safety of the local roads around the school, and the frustration they have when dropping off and collecting their kids.

The vast majority of local (i.e. within 500-1000m) parents do walk their children to school, based on school data. However given that the catchment of the school has increased steadily (Ringmer, Pells, Wallands, Winterbourne, even Denton), and a double intake was introduced in 2011-12, some parents have no choice but to drive to the school. Also some parents drop their children off on the way to their jobs.

The School Governors undertook a transport survey last Spring and the feedback from a parents was quite clear: The status quo is not acceptable. The Head Teacher has to deal both with complaints from parents and neighbours alike on a frequent basis about the congestion and parking during 'The School Run'.

ESCC have no budget for improving the roads around the school, but there could be access to the 'community match'scheme. Regarding an initial solution, it was discussed whether 4 or 5 road painted pick up / drop off bays can be introduced either side of the bus stop on the school side of Church Lane, with limited hours of 8.30-9.15am and 3.00-3.30pm. Such a project would be reasonably simple to design, although consultation on a traffic Order would take time. An alternative could look to introduce "grasscrete" or bays on the northern side of Church Lane, but would cost considerably more than line painting.

### Recent footway repair Western Road, Lewes (within Lewes Conservation Area)

Response by ESCC Highways Liaison Officer, to enquiry regarding recent repair:

"The recent works completed by UKPN have been agreed as a permanent finish as the area was previously 50/50 paving slabs to tarmac already and has been deemed as in keeping with the surrounding area."



Town Hall High Street Lewes East Sussex BN7 2QS 1273 471469 Fax: 01273 480919 160 info@lewes-tc.gov.uk www.lewes-tc.gov.uk



# MINUTES

of the meeting of the **Working Party** formed **to address traffic-related issues in Lewes** held on **Thursday 28<sup>th</sup> November 2013**, in the **Council Chamber, Town Hall**, Lewes at **6:30pm**.

**PRESENT** Cllrs S Catlin (Wischhusen); L F Li; M Milner *(Chairman)*; S Murray; R O'Keeffe. Also present *(not nominated to serve on Working party)*: Cllrs L Allsobrook, and R Murray. *In attendance:* S Brigden *(Town Clerk [TC])*;

TIWP2013/01	<b>WELCOME:</b> The Chairman warmly welcomed all those representatives of stakeholder bodies who were attending in response to his invitation to discuss			
	opportunities offered by imminent projects, such as improvements to the road			
	bridge at the Railway station; developments at North Street, Waitrose, the Bus			
	station site, <i>etc.</i> Several others had offered apologies as they were unable to attend, but had noted their interest in any future discussions. Cllr Milner had presented the			
	view that these issues would all have wide-ranging implications as they impact upon			
	Rail; Road; Parking; Bus; Cycle; and Pedestrian needs for Lewes, and could ben			
	from a coordinated approach insofar as practicable.			
	Attending for this discussion were:			
	Lindsay Frost, Director of Planning & Environmental Services, Lewes District Council (LDC);			
	Tal Kleiman, Planning Policy Officer, Lewes District Council;			
	Mark Valleley, Team Manager - Infrastructure Design & Delivery, East Sussex County Council (ESC			
	Mike Best, Operations Director, Brighton & Hove Bus Company (B&HB);			
	Simon Chapman, Route Enhancement Manager, Network Rail (NR);			
	Miss Sam Bryant, Development Officer, Sussex Community Rail Partnership (SCRP);			
	Derek Barnett, General Manager, Community Transport in the Lewes Area (CTLA);			
	Simon Giddey, Chairman, Cycle Lewes (CL);			
	Kevin Moore, Chairman, Lewes Living Streets (LLS); Norman Baker MP			
	Nonlian Daker MP			
TIWP2013/02	APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: There were none. No message had been			
	received from Cllr A Dean.			
TIWP2013/03	<b>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST:</b> There were none			
TIWP2013/04	MINUTES: The minutes of the meeting on 21 <sup>st</sup> February 2013 were signed as an			

- accurate record.
- TIWP2013/05 PUBLIC QUESTIONS: There were none. (public present: One)

## TIWP2013/06 BUSINESS OF THE MEETING:

20mph speed limit programme – Mr Valleley gave a short update on the status of this project, and noted that a detailed report was due to be considered at an ESCC Lead Member meeting in December. There were design proposals for schemes in six areas: Malling; Nevill; Landport; Houndean; Winterbourne, and Barons' Down. A question was raised as to the likelihood of a single, town-wide, scheme being introduced and Mr Valleley stated that the area schemes were believed to be the best and most practical option. An argument was posed that the existing town-centre scheme was ineffective and the signage too unobtrusive. ESCC surveys had established that current average speeds on the arterial roads across town were too high to allow the imposition of a 20mph limit under current guidelines. There had

been clear demand identified in the residential areas, and these were straightforward to implement. Physical engineering features that would be necessary to allow a town-wide scheme would introduce complications, such as impediment to emergency vehicles. Lewes Living Streets contested this point, and promoted the use of an extension to the national guidelines that had been allowed recently. The matter of funding was raised, and it was accepted that "hard engineering" costs would be substantial and beyond the scope of ESCC's present or foreseeable budget. LLS would continue to press for a single scheme, and their vision of five main gateways to Lewes where it could be made obvious to drivers that they were entering a 20mph area.

Potential expenditure items for recommendation to Council - Cllr O'Keeffe introduced three items that she considered could be acceptable for Town Council support. An additional pedestrian crossing on the Offham Road, near the junction with Prince Edwards Road had now been rated as desirable under ESCC's safety assessment scheme. There was a requirement of around £40,000 to top-up available funds, and Members of the Working Party agreed that Council should be asked to consider supporting this. There was a demand and demonstrable need for a handrail to footway steps in Dorset Road, and also near to the junction of Prince Edwards Road and Ferrers Road. Cllr O'Keeffe had no information on the likely cost of these items and was asked to establish this, and the position of the responsible landowner or public authority, before support could be considered.

"Transport vision" – Cllr Milner introduced a discussion which, he hoped, might "lead to an integrated transport plan for the next twenty years". Now that the Station Road railway bridge was to be repaired; developments in North Street were in sight, and developments at Waitrose and the current bus station site could be anticipated, it was an opportunity to collectively look at the County Town's rail and bus provision, road, bicycle and pedestrian traffic routes and parking provision. The results of this and further meetings would provide valuable information for Lewes' Neighbourhood Plan, being facilitated by the Town Council.

A long and detailed discussion ensued, touching upon topics such as the "shared space" concept and other public realm initiatives. Signage/urban way-finding needed improvement, it was said, and several comments referred to the need to reduce circulating traffic and the number of large vehicles within the town centre. The research carried-out by LDC during its clean air surveys was cited as potentially very useful in refinement of these views. Despite recognized problems with the availability of suitable land, the idea of outlying carparks and regular 'park & ride' shuttle services was thought worthy of further consideration.

It was recognized that the future disposition of car parking and retail space in the town would significantly affect demand for such facilities as a bus-station. The current bus station was a topic of particular interest, and there was extensive discussion as to how the environment and visitor experience might be improved in the short- medium-term. One view suggested that residents of surrounding villages, when they had a choice, were opting to travel in to Lewes by car as the bus station was so "inhospitable". There was speculation as to the real possibility of maintaining a bus station facility on the present site once redevelopment of the adjacent workshops took place. It was acknowledged that the station was not owned by a transport operator, and that its history was not straightforward. Further speculation arose as to the possibility of buying the site with public funds, or identifying it as an asset of community value under provisions of the Localism Act 2011. The planned development in the North Street Quarter was known to include provision for additional parking, and the potential developments in the vicinity of Waitrose held the possibility of altered traffic flows in the immediate area. A statement that B&HB were to increase the frequency of service after 2pm on some key Lewes routes, from April 2014, was welcomed.

4

The "gateway experience" for visitors arriving in Lewes via the railway station was due to be enhanced alongside scheduled work to strengthen the road bridge. This was planned for September 2014, and it was important to adhere to plans as the funding required completion by March 2015. It was noted that the work did not include any changes to the junction system with Pinwell Road/Lansdown Place/Southover Road. With regard to the potential reintroduction of a Lewes-Uckfield rail link (LURL): the likelihood of this was said to be stronger than ever, with recent studies and other initiatives affecting the regional rail network. A special report on the link was shortly to be presented to the Transport Minister by Network Rail, and regional operators' franchise renewals were imminent. It was known that funds were actively being sought to "unblock" problem issues in the area of Croydon. Some informed views suggested that a reinstated Lewes-Uckfield link was a preferable alternative to the more comprehensive (and environmentallycontroversial) BML2 proposals and that priority for LURL would escalate in the next few years (up to 2020). There were outstanding issues such as long-overdue electrification of some lines, but there was a current government initiative to improve these aspects. Network rail were committed to improvements 'beyond' Uckfield, and it was accepted that any success in meeting capacity shortfalls could, conversely, damage the case for LURL.

There followed some discussion on the concepts of "smart travel", and the options for management of demand, and it was acknowledged that it was essential to engage with major employers in this regard.

**TIWP2013/07** As the discussion had drawn to a natural conclusion, the Chairman thanked everyone for attending what had proved to be a most useful meeting, and declared the meeting closed.

		The	meeting closed at 8:45pm
Signed:	Date:		